
 IMMOKALEE 
LOCAL ADVISORY 

BOARD MEETING

   February 19, 2020

9:00 A.M.



CRA Office ||750 S. 5th Street, Suite C (Careersource SWFL Building) 

 Immokalee, FL 34142 || 239-867-0025 

 

 

 

 

 

All meetings are held at the CareerSource SWFL Conference Room located at 750 South 5th Street, 

Immokalee, Fl 34142 unless otherwise noted.  CRA Meetings are held every third Wednesday of the 

month.  MSTU Meetings are held every fourth Wednesday of the month. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of the Community Redevelopment Agency Immokalee Local Redevelopment 

Advisory Board. 

CareerSource SWFL  

750 South 5th Street, 

Immokalee, FL 34142 

 

 

February 19, 2020 - 9:00 A.M. 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call and Announcement of a Quorum 

D. Introductions 

E. Approval of Agenda (Action Item) 

F. Approval of Consent Agenda (Action Items) 

1. Minutes 

i. CRA Advisory Board Meeting for January 15, 2020 (Enclosure 1) 

2. Operations Manager Report (Enclosure 2) 

3. Project Manager Report (Enclosure 3) 

4. Budget Reports (Enclosure 4) 

5. Community Meetings (Enclosure 5) 

G. Announcements 

1. Communications Folder 

2. Public Comment speaker slips 

3. CRA Budget & Work Plan update 

H. CRA New Business 

1. Stormwater Management, Robert Wiley (Enclosure 6) 

2. 2019 Draft Annual Report (Enclosure 7) 

I. CRA Old Business. 

1. Immokalee Area Master Plan updates 

2. CDBG Grants 

i. Carson & South 5th Street 

ii. West Eustis Avenue 

3. TIGER Grant – Immokalee Complete Street updates 

4. Code Enforcement updates (Enclosure 8) 

5. FDOT updates 

i. Panther Crossing Bridge Replacement (Enclosure 9) 

6. Office of Business & Economic Development (OBED) 

7. Immokalee Culinary Accelerator 

8. Other Agencies 

J. Citizen Comments. 

K. Next Meeting Date.   CRA will meet on March 18th at 9:00 A.M. at CareerSource SWFL. 

L. Adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

 

CRA Board 

 

Commissioner 

Donna Fiala 

Co-Chair 

 

Commissioner 

William McDaniel, Jr. 

Co-Chair 

 

Commissioner 

Burt L. Saunders 

 

Commissioner 

Penny Taylor 

 

Commissioner 

Andy Solis, Esq  

 

CRA Advisory Board 

 

Frank Nappo 

Chair 

 

Anne Goodnight 

Vice-Chair 

 

Estil Null 

Edward “Ski” Olesky 

Mike Facundo 

Andrea Halman 

Yvar Pierre 

Francisco Leon 

Mark Lemke 

 

MSTU Advisory 

Committee 

 

Bernardo Barnhart 

Chair 

 

Peter Johnson 

Vice- Chair 

 

Norma Garcia 

Andrea Halman 

Cherryle Thomas 

 

 

CRA Staff 

 

Debrah Forester 

Director 

 

Christie Betancourt 

Operations Manager 

 

Monica Acosta 

Administrative 

Assistant 



 

 

 

 

 

 

* The next Advisory Board meeting will be held March 18, 2020 at 9:00 A.M. at CareerSource SWFL – 750 South 

5th Street, Immokalee, FL 34142. All meetings will be publicly noticed in the W. Harmon Turner Building 

(Building F), posted at the Immokalee Public Library and provided to the County Public Information Department 

for distribution. Please contact Christie Betancourt, Operations Manager, at 239.867.0028 for additional 

information.  In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act, persons needing assistance to participate in 

any of these proceedings should contact Christie Betancourt at least 48 hours before the meeting. The public should 

be advised that members of the CRA Advisory Board are also members of other Boards and Committees, including, 

but not limited to: the Immokalee Fire Commission. In this regard, matters coming before the Advisory Board may 

come before one or more of the referenced Board and Committees from time to time. 



 

Enclosure 1 

1  

  

 

MINUTES  

Meeting of the Immokalee Community Redevelopment Agency Advisory Committee on January 15, 2020. 

CareerSource Southwest Florida 

750 South 5th Street 

Immokalee, FL 34142  

239-658-3000 

 

A. Call to Order.  

The meeting was called to order by Dr. Frank Nappo, CRA Chair at 9:06 A.M. 

B. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

Dr. Frank Nappo led the Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence. 

C. Roll Call and Announcement of a Quorum. 

Christie Betancourt opened roll call.  A quorum was announced for the CRA board. 

CRA Advisory Committee Members Present:  

Estil Null, Frank Nappo, Patricia “Anne” Goodnight, Andrea Halman, Francisco “Frank” Leon, Edward 

“Ski” Olesky, Yvar Pierre, and Mark Lemke. 

CRA Advisory Committee Members Absent/Excused:  

Michael “Mike” Facundo. 

Others Present:  

Danny Gonzalez, Yakira Chu, Andrew Bennett, Sarah Catala, Silvia Puente, Georgeann McNatt Gosch, 

Jessica Crane, Victoria Peters, Theresa Schober, Michael Taylor, Ahmed El, Lisa Loren, Chris Ambach, 

Justin Lobb, and David Longfield Smith. 

Staff: Debrah Forester, Christie Betancourt, Julian Morgan, and Monica Acosta. 

D. Introductions. 

All public present introduced themselves.  All board members introduced themselves to the members of 

the public. 

E. Approval of Agenda. 

Staff presented agenda to the board for approval. Staff announced changes to the agenda. Item G. 4. 

Chamber of Commerce was added. Item I. 3. i. should be Carver instead of Carson. Item K. the next 

CRA meeting is on February 19, not February 15. 

 

Action: Ms. Anne Goodnight made a motion to approve the agenda with changes.  Mr. Ski Olesky 

seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous vote. 8-0. 

 

F. Approval of Consent Agenda. 

1. Minutes 

i. Joint CRA & MSTU Advisory Board Meeting for December 18, 2019 (Enclosure 1) 

2. Operations Manager Report (Enclosure 2) 

3. Project Manager Report (Enclosure 3) 

4. Budget Reports (Enclosure 4) 

5. Community Meetings (Enclosure 5) 

 

 



 

Enclosure 1 

2  

  

 

Staff presented the board with the December 18, 2019 Joint CRA & MSTU Meeting Minutes, CRA 

Operations Manager Report, CRA Project Manager Report, Budgets, and Upcoming Meetings.  

 

Action: Ms. Andrea Halman made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Mr. Ski Olesky 

seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous vote. 8-0. 

 

G. Announcements. 

1. Communications Folder 

Staff reviewed the communications folder with the board and members of the public.  The folder 

contained the public notice for this meeting, the 2020 Calendar for the CRA and MSTU meetings, 

Governor DeSantis open vacancy’s, IUNC Housing Committee meeting and upcoming 

community event flyers.  Ms. Anne Goodnight made a request that the June meeting be a joint 

meeting with MSTU on June 24, 2020 as three of the board members have another meeting to 

attend on the scheduled June 17, 2020. Mr. Ski Olesky also announced that the Parks and 

Recreation meeting will be on February 19, 2020 at the community park at 2:00 p.m. 

2. Public Comment speaker slips 

CRA staff reiterated the public 3-minute speaker slip policy.  The board will give more time if 

they feel it necessary. 

3. CRA Budget & Work Plan Workshop – February 13, 2020 @ 10:00 A.M. 

Staff announced that the Budget and Workplan Workshop has been scheduled for February 13, 

2020, members of the boards and public are encouraged to attend. 

4. Immokalee Chamber of Commerce 

Mr. Danny Gonzalez addressed the board with support towards the Immokalee Airport expansion.  

He feels that the expansion is positive for the community and welcomes the possibility of more 

businesses.  He also asked for an update on the  proposed 7 Eleven project.  At this time staff did 

not have an update but will keep everyone up to date as information becomes available.  As a 

business owner, he expressed his concerns over the food trucks that have popped up recently. His 

concern is that the food trucks are not following procedure or getting the permitting done before 

opening up for business. 

H. CRA New Business.  

1. Immokalee Regional Airport – Justin Lobb, Collier County Airports Manager 

Mr. Justin Lobb presented the board with updates at  the Immokalee Regional Airport projects. 

The current 2020 cycle has an estimated ten million in projects, three of which are under design.  

The rehabilitation of the North/South runway is one, the Taxiway extension, through FAA 

additional funding, is another.  The last one is the security camera’s for access control which will 

be used for the terminal and airfield.  These will serve to enhance safety for planes.  

 

A concern with the runway and taxi extension is the issue with the raceway, they are currently 

trying to work with the Immokalee Regional Raceway owners to come to an agreement over the 

issue.  The property belongs to the Airport, but FAA gave them permission to lease the area for 

the raceway with a caveat that the property could be reverted to an actual runway.  The project is 

set to start at the end of the year.  

 



 

Enclosure 1 

3  

  

One of the more exciting things coming is the flight school.  There has already been interest with 

International students from Ireland and the United Kingdom, training here is cheaper than in the 

UK.  This will be an actual school, providing housing and meal plan. 

 

The other exciting thing is the three parcels of commercial property that three parties have 

proposed to use. Each one looks very promising.  One is a flight school, one is to be used as a 

possible hangar, and the third one cannot be disclosed at this time but will be very beneficial to 

the community.  There is about ten acres between the three parcels. 

I. CRA Old Business 

1. Immokalee Area Master Plan update 

Staff provided the board with the update that the 45-day grace period is almost near, a final version 

of the Immokalee Area Master Plan should be available next month. 

2. Immokalee Stormwater Master Plan update 

Staff informed board that there is not a current update on the Immokalee Stormwater Master Plan 

but Mr. Robert Wiley, Project Manager, will be here to discuss stormwater projects next month.    

3. CDBG Grant update 

i. Carver & South 5th Street 

Staff informed board that this project is currently at 90% plans, awaiting the engineer to 

address a few items and the project should be at 100% plans within the next month.  Bid 

documents are going out. 

ii. FY2020-2021 Grant Application Cycle (Enclosure 6) 

Staff informed board that they will be applying for another grant.  This would be to 

continue the sidewalk in the Eustis area, a map of the proposed section is in the Project 

Manager’s report located in Enclosure 3. The window to apply is very short, deadline is 

February 10, 2020.  

 

Action: Ms. Anne Goodnight made a motion to allow staff to apply for CDBG grant.  Mr. Francisco 

Leon seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous vote. 8-0. 

 

Staff also announced the departure of Julian Morgan, Project Manager, his last day will be 

January 24, 2020. 

4. Tiger Grant – Immokalee Complete Street updates 

Staff announced that RFP is being finalized to hire someone for design. 

5. Code Enforcement update (Enclosure 7) 

Mr. Chris Ambach informed the board that the final count for last month’s cleanup was 17 tons.  

The next cleanup will be held in March.  The focus of his group last year was the issues with 

dilapidated trailers, from October 2018 through January 2020, there have been 38 that they have 

addressed.  The newer issues have been the excessive Food Trucks, especially on New Market 

Road, this is a priority for code enforcement, a senior staff member has been tasked with policing 

the New Market Road area, there will also be a hearing next month on the 23rd to address this issue.   

 

One last issue that code has been working on is the homeless camps, there is a big one on South 

1st, they took it to hearing and an order has been issued to pull out all the plants and vegetation in 

that area so that the homeless can’t continue to make camps there. 



 

Enclosure 1 

4  

  

6. FDOT updates 

Ms. Victoria Peters addressed the board with grant information for funds with the Small 

Community Outreach Program Grant (SCOP).  She announced that the SR82 & SR29 from Gator 

Slough to 29 roundabout is under construction.  The final segment from Hendry county line to 

Gator Slough is currently under design. 

7. Office of Business & Economic Development (OBED) 

No update 

8. Immokalee Culinary Accelerator 

Mr. Ahmed El announced to the board that the Accelerator currently has 25 members, one of which 

has opened a smoothie bar in Immokalee at a local gym called Built Beast Gym, the member is 

Tomahawk Nutrition.  One member has come up with human grade pet food, another member has 

opened up a food cart at Ave Maria whose food is Columbian Cuisine, and the member will also 

be working with Robert’s Ranch and the Cattle Drive on March 14, 2020. 

9. Other Agencies: 

Robert’s Ranch: 

Ms. Theresa Schober announced that she had the save the date invites for this year’s Cattle Drive 

to be held on March 14, 2020 and she also has vendor packets for anyone that is interested.  She 

was also excited to share that the Ranch was featured in a five-page article Florida Sun Magazine 

that is given on the Lufthansa Airline from Germany.   

 

Chamber of Commerce: 

Mr. Danny Gonzalez announced that former alumni Johnny Smith will be the Immokalee High 

School Indians head football coach next season. 

 

Blue Zones: 

Mr. David Longfield-Smith announced that Blue Zones is here to help promote food, culture, and 

community and he would like to be able to help this community as much as he can. 

 

Ms. Jessica Crane, also with Blue Zones, announced her departure from Blue Zones. 

 

Immokalee Library: 

Ms. Silvia Puente provided updates on upcoming events at the Immokalee Library. 

 

Collier County Sherriff’s Department: 

Sherriff Mike Taylor announced that the traffic enforcement department currently only has one 

police officer patrolling the schools and construction zones in Immokalee but will have three 

officers starting next month.  They will be giving citations to those that are using cell phones in 

the school zones and construction and those who are not stopping for school busses.  

   

J. Citizens Comments. 

No Citizens Comments  

K. Next Meeting Date. CRA will next meet on February 19, 2020 at 9:00 A.M. at CareerSource SWFL

    located at 750 South 5th Street, Immokalee, FL 

L. Adjournment.  Meeting Adjourned @ 10:47 A.M. 



1 

Operations Manager Report 

February 12, 2020 

1. Immokalee Area Master Plan (IAMP) Restudy (PL201880002258)

Approved on 05/14/2019 by BCC for transmittal to DEO.

Transmitted to DEO on 05/24/2019.

DEO provided comments on 06/21/2019

Approved by the CCPC on 10/31/2019.

Approved by BCC for final adoption on 12/10/2019.

No update

2. CRA Office

CareerSource SWFL

• Office IT Connectivity upgrade – Connection has been installed with Comcast.

• Office Signage is complete

• Job Bank Assistant – staff is continuing to use temp service until further action is taken.

Enclosure 2 



2 
 

3. Sidewalk Projects in Immokalee 

Eden park Elementary Safe Routes to School 

• 6’ Sidewalk on the south and west side of the road. 
• Construction costs $663,000. 
• Funded with Safe Routes to School funds in FY 21/22. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lake Trafford Road 



3 
 

 

 

4. TIGER (Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery) Grant 

Immokalee Complete Streets TIGER Grant – $16,415,864 

Project total.  Funding sources are FHWA grand funds 

(80%) = $13,132,691 County match funds (20%) = 

$3,283,173. 

 

• Includes design and construction of 20 Miles of 

concrete sidewalks, a bike boulevard network, a 

shared-use path, street lighting, bus shelters, a new 

transit center, landscaping, drainage improvements, 

and intersection and traffic calming retreats. 

• Collier County has provided the CRA with an 

overview of estimated schedule with milestones.  

The design/build portion of this project is set to start 

Winter 2020 and construction is set to be completed 

Winter 2023. 

No update 

 

5. Commercial Façade Grant 

Program is in place and being reviewed for revisions.  

• On June 19, 2019 CRA board approved Lozano’s Mini Mart for a $20,000 façade grant for 

improvements to property located at 102 New Market Rd. 

• Staff is collecting backup documentation from property owner. 

• Staff will take agreement to BCC for final approval. 

• Staff met with Mini Mart oweners to complete package for BCC submittal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. FHERO 

Florida Heartland Economic Region of Opportunity – updates 

Staff will attend FHERO monthly meeting on March 09, 2020. 

FHERO was awarded a $22,000 grant to prepare an Economic Strategic Plan for 

Immokalee.  Site Tour will be conducted by VisonFirst on March 13, 2020. 

 



4 
 

 

7. Immokalee Unmet Needs Coalition 

The Housing Committee met on January 8, 2020 and provided updates on housing improvements in 

Immokalee.  The committee is working on revising the Immokalee Disaster Recover Resiliency Plan and 

funding options for future projects.  The Immokalee Unmet Needs Coalition (IUNC) is a long-term recovery 

group that formed in the fall of 2017 as the result of Hurricane Irma. This group is composed of non-profits, 

faith based, local, state or national organizations who work together to meet the unmet of Immokalee residents 

impacted by disaster. The IUNC works in collaboration with other agencies to assess needs, offer resources 

and ensure that residents are assisted after their resources (FEMA, SBA loans, and personal insurance) have 

been exhausted. 

 

Our objectives are to: 

• Provide residents with spiritual and emotional care management. 

• Home repairs according to unmet needs funding 

• Community care through case management. 

 

Priorities 

The Immokalee Unmet Needs goal is to assure that our community is prepared for future disaster by: 

• Educating about the process and resources for recovery 

• Joining the county Emergency Management Plan (Including the IUNC in the Emergency 

Management Plan assures that necessary decisions are made beforehand.) 

• Keeping donations local 

• Workshops  

• Improving communication  

 

8. EPA Brownfields Coalition Assessment Grant 

Awarded to the Southwest Florida Regional Planning Council.  Immokalee site identified in the grant was the 

Immokalee Regional Airport (165 Airpark Blvd., Immokalee, FL. 34142). 

Airport staff is coordinating with Terracon to complete assessment. 

 

9. Economic Development in Immokalee 

• Burger King rebuild on 15th Street – opened January 11, 2020. 

• Guadalupe Center at Jubilation Ribbon Cutting – February 6, 2020 @ 11:30 a.m. 

• KFC remodeled (old Taco Bell building) on 15th Street 

• Proposed 7 Eleven at corner of 9th and Main Street 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10. The Face of Immokalee 

Michelle Tricca, a local Artist, presented The 

Face of Immokalee, a proposed outdoor 

photography installation celebrating the soul of 

Immokalee.  CRA board supported the project 

and have formed a subcommittee to move the 

project forward.   

The subcommittee met on December 9th to 

discuss the art wall options for the old McCrory’s 

building (S&O Grocery), Lipman Produce 

(trucks/building), site on 1st Street (Gadsden blue 

building), and the Zocalo plaza.  Committee 

supported rendering provided by artist with 

minor changes.  Ms. Tricca’s photos were 

selected to be displayed at the BCC Chamber 

now through February 29, 2020. 

 

 



6 
 

 

11. Collier County Opportunity Zone Program 

A new community and economic development tool to drive long-term private investment in low-income 

communities! 

Collier County hopes to leverage Opportunity Zones as an important tool to support the development of jobs, 

affordable housing and economic vitality in five areas in Golden Gate, Naples Manor and in and around 

Immokalee.  

Low Tax Opportunity Zones, established by the federal Tax Cut and Jobs Act of 2017, encourage long-term 

investment and job creation in targeted communities by reducing taxes for many job creators. They enhance 

the ability to attract businesses, developers and financial institutions to invest in these targeted areas 

— distressed communities — by allowing investors to defer capital gains taxes through investments Low Tax 

Opportunity Zones, established by the federal Tax Cut and Jobs Act of 2017, encourage long-term investment 

and job creation in targeted communities by reducing taxes for many job creators. The zones enhance local 

communities’ ability to attract businesses, developers and financial institutions to invest in targeted areas by 

allowing investors to defer capital gains taxes through investments in federally established Opportunity Funds. 

 

 

It's an economic and community development tax incentive program that provides a new impetus for private 

investors to support distressed communities through private equity investments in businesses and real estate 

ventures. The incentive is deferral, reduction and potential elimination of certain federal capital gains taxes.  

 

U.S. investors hold trillions of dollars in unrealized capital gains in stocks and mutual funds alone, a 

significant untapped resource for economic development!  

 

To become a Qualified Opportunity Fund, an eligible corporation or partnership self-certifies by filing Form 

8996, Qualified Opportunity Fund, with its federal income tax return.  

 

Three areas in and around Immokalee, from Lake Trafford to the west to the county line to the east 

• Census Tract 112.05 area surrounding Immokalee 

• Census Tract 113.01 area surrounding Immokalee  

• Census Tract 114      Immokalee 

Report by: 

Christie Betancourt, Operations Manager 

https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/f8996.pdf
https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/f8996.pdf
https://data.naplesnews.com/american-community-survey/census-tract-11205-collier-county-florida/poverty-status/population/yty/14000US12021011205/area/
https://data.naplesnews.com/american-community-survey/block-group-2-census-tract-11301-collier-county-florida/population/black/num/15000US120210113012/area/
https://data.naplesnews.com/american-community-survey/census-tract-114-collier-county-florida/poverty-status/islander/yty/14000US12021011400/area/


1 

Project Manager Report 

02/12/2020 

1. Pedestrian Safety Improvements

i. Immokalee Sidewalk Project Phase III – Eustis Avenue

On February 6, 2020 the CRA applied for a Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) for the construction of sidewalks along Eustis Avenue.   

Project area is highlighted in yellow (see above) from South 5th Street to South 1st Street 

(about .3 mile).  Current and completed projects are highlighted in orange (see above). 

Total cost for the project (design and construction) is estimated at $380,000 over two fiscal 

years.  The MSTU (Fund 162) will design the project in FY20, anticipated cost is $60,000.  

The CRA (Fund 186) will contribute $20,000 for CEI services in FY21.  

In FY21, if grant funds are awarded, a Budget Amendment of $320,000 will be initiated to 

recognize the grant revenue of $300,000 and $20,000 in CRA Fund 186.  Although this 

grant application does not require a match; the CRA is pledging a monetary match of 

$20,000 for CEI services for the project in fiscal year (FY21).  Total contribution to this 

project by the MSTU and CRA is $80,000. 

ii. SR 29 (Main Street) from North 9th Street to North 1st Street (Project #439002-1)

Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) partnered with the Community 

Redevelopment Agency (CRA) and the Municipal Service Taxing Unit (MSTU) to 

program a project on SR 29 in Immokalee due to a history high bicycle and pedestrian 

crashes and activity.  

Enclosure 3



2 
 

 

The purpose of the project is to increase pedestrian and bicyclist safety and consists of 

installing two RRFBs (Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons), signing and pavement 

marking improvements, reconstruction of the lighting system, constructing a new signal at 

3rd Street, drainage improvements, and sidewalk enhancements. The project is estimated 

at 1.98 Million. The FDOT Project Manager for this project is David Jones. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Schedule: 

• 100% design completed in May 2019. 

• Out for bid by July 2019. 

• Award the contract to the contractor by December 2019. 

• Construction will begin within 60/90 days after awarded contract (April 2020). 

• Expected completion by September 2020. 

 

Background: 

• FDOT will pay the cost to install 30 standard LED light Poles. 

• MSTU will pay the cost difference to add the enhancements. 

 

The MSTU provided an advance deposit of $125,342 to FDOT for installation of holiday 

attachments on 30 light poles and all efforts associated with adding the attachments, 

including banner arms, GFCI outlets, additional conductors, mobilization and maintenance 

of traffic at SR29 from 1st Street North to 9th Street North in Immokalee. 

 

No update 

 

iii. Immokalee Sidewalk Project Phase II 

 

Carver Street and S. 5th Street (funded with CDBG and CRA funds) Project #33588.1 

The CRA received a total of $676,365 of HUD funding allocation for CDBG projects.  The 

Immokalee Sidewalk 2018 Improvement Project will allow the CRA to complete sidewalk 

improvements along a portion of Carver Street & South 5th Street.  The CRA has allocated 

$100,000 for design in fiscal year 2019 and $60,000 for construction in fiscal year 2020. 

The total project cost is estimated at $860,000.  Depending on cost estimate the CRA may 

have to use additional funds to complete the project. 



3 
 

 

This project is part of a sidewalk implementation program in Immokalee, which will 

provide many benefits including safety, mobility, and healthier communities.  The 

sidewalks will make the community more attractive to potential businesses to come to the 

community, thus will increase job opportunities. 

Action Plan:  

• 90% Plans were submitted for review which ended on December 31, 2019. 

• A couple of reviews came back with responses.  We received commend from CAT 

and the ISWD. 

• We need to schedule a meeting soon. 

• Also, ABB will send-out our survey crew to survey the improvements associated 

with 125 Carver Street.  Hopefully, the finish in a timely manner once they start. 

• ABB has used the proposed design information provided from the County to act as 

the existing drainage conditions for the 90% plan submittal. 

• Once we have the review comments back, we can schedule another meeting to 

discuss them and any other plan changes you might want to see. 

• ABB anticipates 30-45 days to turn around the final 100% plans.  We can look at 

your grant schedule at that point if we need to fine tune the delivery date. 

 

iv. Blue Light Poles 

Light poles inspection and mapping.  Staff is conducting an assessment and 

inventory of existing light poles in district area.  Staff will determine if poles in the 

project area can be reconfigured into knockdown areas or other areas that need 

lighting.  Staff will investigate options for storage of the poles and bring forward to 

a future meeting. 

Status of Insurance Claims: 

• Claim #50-09011909629 for Pole #11 is pending SR29 & New Market Rd West. 

• Claim #53-03101808019 for Pole #20 is being paid in installments so it’s not 

listed and pending.   

Total reimbursed this fiscal year is $53,778.97 to MSTU funds ($52,878.97 fund 

162 and $900 fund 111). 



4 
 

2. Trash Cans & Garbage Pickup 

Staff is continuing cleanup efforts with our Maintenance Contractor, Waste 

Connections and our Community Taskforce to keep Immokalee clean.  

3. Zocalo Plaza 

i. Parks & Recreation Monthly Maintenance 

• Staff is doing monthly maintenance of plaza.  Monthly reports are being 

provided to CRA staff on a quarterly basis. 

• Staff is billing CRA & MSTU funds quarterly. 

• Cleaning, Painting, trimming, mulch installation, and Decorating assistance. 

ii. Staff 

• Staff is seeking better option for decorating at the plaza. 

o New lighting and decorations 

o 5-year contract for installing Holiday Decorations 

 

4. Beautification Enhancements 

i. Welcome Signs (Monuments) 

1. Repairs to Monument Sign on SR 29 (Triangle Area) & Monument on 1st 

Street and Eustis Avenue.  Update: Lykins was awarded the contract to do 

repairs and replacement totaling $48,815. 

2. Replacement/New Monument Sign on 1st Street and SR29 (Farm Workers 

Village) Update: Pending easement access. 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

 

 
5. Roadway Improvements 

i. SR 82 Road Widening Project Gator Slough Lane to SR 29 (Project # 430849-1. 

 

The Florida Depart of Transportation (FDOT) held an information session for the 

community to illustrate plans and renderings for the up and coming four lane roadway 

widening project which is to include a roundabout. Improvements will be made to a stretch 

of 3.2 miles of roadway. The community outreach manager is Lisa Macias.  The Project 

Manager is Dennis Day. 

 

 

Roundabout added features: 

• Shoulder (5 feet wide) 

• Bike Lanes on south side 

• Sidewalk (5 feet wide) on north side 

• Median (54 feet wide) 

• Multi-use Trail (10 Feet) along south side 

 

Project Outline: 

• Scheduled to begin towards the end of 2019 

• Construction ending in 2022 

• Estimated cost of $29 million 

• Contractor is Ajax Paving Industries of Florida 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

 

 

 

6. Panther Path Pedestrian Crossing Bridge  

Bridge was pressure washed and painted.  Road Maintenance Division provided 

the materials to Collier County Public Schools.  School volunteers painted the 

vertical walls at the end of each ramp. 

 

Update: More areas need painting.  Need to coordinate with school and county to 

get a skilled volunteer artist to finish the unpainted areas.  Boards will provide a 

letter of support from each board to re-build the bridge when SR29 is expanded. 

Staff is drafting letter for replacement bridge request. 

 



 Immokalee Beautification  
FUND 111

February 7, 2020

Vendor Item PO# Budget Commitments Expenditures Total Avalaible

1 Coster 163805 Imm Rd & SR 29 215,700.00$   215,700.00$      

2 TOTAL EXPENSE 215,700.00$   34,287.08$     80,023.12$        101,389.80$      

3 INS CO REFUND 369130 (900.00)$     

4 A&M Incidental 634990 4500199030 35,000.00$      -$    5,000.00$    30,000.00$      

5 -$    -$     

6 LANDSCAPE INCIDENTAL 35,000.00$      -$    5,000.00$    30,000.00$      

7 A&M Maintenance 634999 4500199030 140,000.00$     12,080.00$     65,920.00$     62,000.00$     

8 -$      -$     

9 OTHER CONTRACTUAL 140,000.00$   12,080.00$     65,920.00$      62,000.00$      

10 LCEC - 0476220000 -SR 29 7th St 643100 4700004098 300.00$     197.45$     102.55$      -$     

11 LCEC - 8773840000 - S. 1st. St. lights  643100 4700004098 1,500.00$      1,139.19$      360.81$      -$     

12 LCEC - 9874030000 SR 29 Irrigation 643100 4700004098 1,600.00$      1,115.48$      484.52$      -$     

13 LCEC - 5844855623 Security Lights 643100 4700004098 6,000.00$      3,622.50$      2,377.50$     -$     

14 LCEC - -$      -$     

15 ELECTRICITY 13,000.00$     6,074.62$     3,325.38$     3,600.00$     

16 IWSD - 11060226-01 Meter# 2642 643400 4700004030 2,100.00$      1,300.49$      799.51$      -$     

17 IWSD - 11062507-1 Meter # 6933 643400 4700004030 930.00$     588.29$     341.71$      -$     

18 IWSD - 11062508-01 Meter# 8642 643400 4700004030 2,370.00$      1,807.38$      562.62$      -$     

19

20 IWSD - 21210106-01 Meter# 8624 643400 4700004030 3,500.00$      1,367.51$      2,132.49$     -$     

21 7/24/17-08/24/17 107 N 1st St. 643400 1900199214 -$     

22 WATER & SEWER 6,000.00$      5,063.67$     3,836.33$     (2,900.00)$     

23 Trash & Garbage WASTE CONNECTIONS 643300 4500198629 11,000.00$      10,000.00$     1,000.00$     

24 FLORIDA IRRIGATION SUPPLY INC 646311 4500199023 1,200.00$      1,068.79$     131.21$      -$     

25 SPRINKLER SYSTEM MAINT 3,400.00$      1,068.79$     131.21$     2,200.00$     

26 646318 4500190519 6,000.00$      6,000.00$     

27 MULCH 646318 7,000.00$      -$    2,710.20$    4,289.80$     

28 FERT HERB CHE 652310 300.00$      -$    -$  300.00$    
29 OPERATING EXPENSE 215,700.00$   34,287.08$     80,023.12$      101,389.80$      

30 TOTAL BUDGET 215,700.00$   

31 Total Available Balance 101,389.80$      

32  Commited And Not Spent 34,287.08$      

33

34 Estimated Cash 135,676.88$      

Enclosure 4



Vendor Commitment Item

 Immokalee Beautification 
FUND 162

February 08, 2020

Item PO# Budget Commitments Expenditures Total

1 CUR AD VALOREM TAX 311100 (395,100.00)$     -$   (292,818.02)$     (102,281.98)$     

2 DEL AD VALOREM 311200 -$   -$  -$  -$     

3 OVERNIGHT INTEREST 361170 -$   -$  (1,212.71)$    1,212.71$      

4 INVESTMENT INTEREST 361180 (7,000.00)$      -$   (4,329.26)$    (2,670.74)$      

5 INTEREST TAX COLLECTOR 361320 -$   -$  (151.30)$     151.30$     

6 INS CO REFUNDS 369130 -$   -$  (52,878.97)$     52,878.97$     

7 REVENUE STRUCTURE (402,100.00)$     -$   (351,390.26)$    (50,709.74)$     

8 TRANSFER FROM PROP. APPR. 486600 -$   -$  -$  -$     

9 TRANSFER FROM TAX COLL. 486700 -$   -$  -$  -$     

10 CARRY FORWARD GEN 489200 (731,900.00)$     -$   -$  (731,900.00)$    

11 CARRY FORWARD OF ENCUMB AMT 489201 (7,080.75)$      -$   -$  (7,080.75)$     

12  NEG 5% EST REV 489900 20,200.00$     -$   -$  20,200.00$    

13

13 TRANSFERS & CONTRIB (718,780.75)$     -$   -$  (718,780.75)$    

14 TOTAL REVENUE (1,120,880.75)$     -$   (351,390.26)$    (769,490.49)$     

15 Q. Grady Minor 631400 Monument Design 4500188387 4,650.75$     

16 Q. Grady Minor 631400 Landscape Architect 4500195523 52,080.75$     2,430.00$     -$     

17 ENG FEES OTHER 52,080.75$     4,659.50$     2,421.25$       45,000.00$     

18 ABSTRACT FEES Collier County 631650 400.00$     -$   400.00$    

19 INDIRECT COST REIMBURS Collier County 634970 Indirect Cost Direct Pay 2,200.00$      1,100.00$     1,100.00$       -$      

20 INTERDEPT PAY Parks & Recreation 639980 Zocalo - Maintenance InterDept Pay 20,000.00$     -$   2,499.97$      17,500.03$     

21 Lykins Signtek & Development Welcome Sign 4500200840 48,815.00$     48,815.00$      -$   -$     

22 Papaney & Sons Install Zocalo Decorations 450020852 3,200.00$      -$   3,200.00$      -$      

23 Trimmers Install Lighted Garlands 4500200728 9,000.00$      -$   9,000.00$      -$      

24 Trimmers  Install Christmas Tree 4500200673 5,000.00$      -$   5,000.00$      -$      

25 A&M Property  Incidentials/Road Maint 4500199030 8,000.00$      4,950.00$     3,050.00$       -$      

26 OTHER CONTRACTUAL 634999 100,000.00$       53,765.00$    20,250.00$     25,985.00$     

27 TRASH & GARBAGE DISPOSAL 643300 1,000.00$      -$   -$  1,000.00$     

28 INSURANCE GENERAL Collier County 645100 Insurance General Direct Pay 700.00$     350.00$      350.00$      -$      

29 SPRINKLER SYSTEM MAINT Florida Irrigation System (FIS) 646311 Irrigation Parts 15,000.00$     -$   15,000.00$    

30 LIGHTING MAINTENANCE 646451 85,000.00$     -$   -$  85,000.00$    

31 LICENSES AND PERMITS 649010 2,000.00$      -$     2,000.00$     

32 LEGAL ADVERTISING 649100 200.00$     -$   -$  200.00$    

33 OFFICE SUPPLIES 651110 500.00$     -$   -$  500.00$    

34 MINOR PFFOCE 651910 1,000.00$      -$   299.90$     700.10$     

35 SALES TAX EXPENSES -$   -$    -$      

36 OTHER OPERATING -$   -$  -$  -$     

37 FOOD OPERATING 652210 500.00$     -$   176.27$     323.73$     

38 OTHER OPERATING 652990 100.00$     -$   2,352.95$      (2,252.95)$      

39 PAINTING SUPPLIES 652999 -$   -$  428.02$     (428.02)$      

40 OPERATING EXPENSE 280,680.75$       59,874.50$      29,878.36$      190,927.89$       

41 -$      -$      

42 IMMPROVEMENTS GENERAL 763100 100,000.00$     -$      

43 OTHER MACHINERY 764990 5,000.00$      -$      

44 CAPITAL EXPENSES 105,000.00$       -$   -$  105,000.00$      

45   TRANSFERS TO 112 911120 -$      
46 TRANSFERS TO 186 911860 85,000.00$     -$   42,500.00$     42,500.00$     

47 TRANSFERS 85,000.00$     -$   42,500.00$     42,500.00$     

48 Budget Trans from Appraiser 930600 4,000.00$      1,625.54$       2,374.46$      

49 Budget Trans from Tax Collector 930700 9,000.00$      6,356.36$       2,643.64$      

50 TRANSFERS CONST 13,000.00$     -$   7,981.90$      5,018.10$      

51 Reserves for Capital 993000 637,200.00$     637,200.00$     

52 RESERVES 637,200.00$       -$   -$  637,200.00$      

53 TOTAL BUDGET 1,120,880.75$     59,874.50$      80,360.26$      980,645.99$       

54 Total Available Balance 980,645.99$     

55  Commited And Not Spent 59,874.50$     

56 Estimated Cash 1,040,520.49$     

57 (102,281.98)$     

 Estimated Cash Less 

Uncollected Ad Valorem Taxes 



Immokalee Redevelopment Fund 186 
February 07, 2020

Vendor Item PO# Budget Commitments Expenditures Total

1 OVERNIGHT INTEREST 331220 -$    -$   (9,637.49)$    9,637.49$    

2 INVESTMENT INTEREST 334225 (1,606.25)$    1,606.25$    

3 OVERNIGHT INTEREST 361170 -$    -$   (1,367.43)$    1,367.43$    

4 INVESTMENT INTEREST 361180 (12,000.00)$    (4,464.09)$    (7,535.91)$     

5 SURPLUS FURNITURE 364410 -$    -$     

6 REVENUE STRUCTURE (12,000.00)$    -$   (17,075.26)$    5,075.26$    

7 TRANSFER FROM 001 481001 (616,900.00)$    -$   (616,900.00)$    -$     

8 TRANSFER FROM 111 481111 (139,700.00)$    -$   (139,700.00)$    -$     

9 TRANSFER FROM 162 481162 (85,000.00)$    -$   (42,500.00)$    (42,500.00)$     

10 CARRY FORWARD GEN 489200 (779,900.00)$    -$   -$   (779,900.00)$    

11 CARRY FORWARD OF 489201 (108,950.00)$    (108,950.00)$    

12  NEG 5% EST REV 489900 600.00$    -$   -$   600.00$    

13 TRANSFERS & CONTRIB (1,729,850.00)$    -$   (799,100.00)$    (930,750.00)$     

14 TOTAL REVENUE (1,741,850.00)$    -$   (816,175.26)$    (925,674.74)$     

15 PERSONAL SERVICE 257,300.00$    14,796.00$    62,212.28$    180,291.72$    

16 IT CAP ALLOCATION 634207 DIRECT 2,600.00$    1,300.00$    1,300.00$    -$     -

17 IT OFFICE AUTOMATION 634210 DIRECT 12,000.00$    6,000.00$    6,000.00$    -$     

18 IT MS OFFICE 634212 DIRECT 300.00$    -$   300.00$    -$     

19 INDIRECT COST 634970 DIRECT 54,900.00$    27,450.00$    27,450.00$    -$     

20 INTERDEPT PAYMENTS Zocalo Sept-Nov Maint 634980 INTEROFFICE 12,000.00$    -$   2,499.96$   9,500.04$    

21 Pauli Systems 634999 4500199849 3,000.00$    1,199.00$    1,801.00$    -$     

22 A&M Property Maintenance 634999 4500199032 5,500.00$    4,500.00$    1,000.00$    -$     

23 Premier Staffing 634999 4500199020 40,000.00$    27,366.28$    12,633.72$    0.00$     

24 Office Door/Window sign 634999 VISA 408.00$     (408.00)$     

25 OTHER CONTRACTUAL 634999 90,000.00$    33,065.28$    15,842.72$    41,092.00$    

26 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 640200 DIRECT 500.00$    -$   -$   500.00$    

27 TRAVEL PROF DEVELOP 640300 DIRECT 4,500.00$    -$   2,998.38$   1,501.62$    

28 MOTOR POOL RENTAL CHARGE Fleet - County Car 640410 DIRECT -$   -$   -$    

29 TELEPHONE ACCESS 641230 600.00$    -$   -$   600.00$    

30 TELEPHONE DIRECT LINE Centurylink 641400 4700004054 6,000.00$    3,551.88$    1,448.12$    1,000.00$    

31 CELLULAR TELEPHONE Verizon 641700 4500199033 3,000.00$    1,656.45$    843.55$     500.00$     

32 POST FREIGHT & UPS USPS 641950 200.00$    -$   12.11$    187.89$     

33 POSTAGE 641951 100.00$    -$   -$   100.00$    

34 ELECTRICITY LCEC 643100 4700004080 2,000.00$    648.38$    351.62$     1,000.00$    

35 WATER AND SEWER Immokalee Water & Sewer 643400 4700004031 3,000.00$    2,633.81$    1,166.19$    (800.00)$     

36 RENT BUILDINGS SWFL Workforce Board 644100 4700004032 35,000.00$    20,411.16$    14,579.40$    9.44$     

37 LEASE EQUIPMENT J.M. Todd 644620 4500199037 1,900.00$    1,112.65$    887.35$     (100.00)$     

38 INSURANCE GENERAL 645100 DIRECT 2,000.00$    1,000.00$    1,000.00$    -$     

39 BUILDING RM IS 646180 500.00$    -$   -$   500.00$    

40 FENCING MAINTENANCE Carter Fencing 646317 4500197338 8,950.00$    -$   8,950.00$   -$     

41 FLEET MAINTENANCE PARTS 646440 VISA -$   -$  5.59$    (5.59)$     

42 PRINTING & OUTSIDE VENDORS 647110 500.00$    -$   25.00$    475.00$     

43 OTHER ADS 648160 200.00$    -$   -$   200.00$    

44 MARKETING AND PROMOTIONAL 648170 2,000.00$    -$   158.68$    1,841.32$    

45 CLERKS RECORDING 649030 100.00$    -$   -$   100.00$    

46 LEGAL ADVERTISING Desk Spinco Inc./Naples Daily 649100 4500200498 1,000.00$    4,000.00$    -$    (3,000.00)$    

47 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS 649990 Visa 300.00$    -$   139.43$    160.57$     

48 Office Depot 651110 3,000.00$    -$   73.88$    2,926.12$    

49 OFFICE SUPPLIES 651110 3,000.00$    -$   73.88$    2,926.12$    

50 COPYING CHARGES J.M. Todd 651210 3,000.00$    2,494.41$    1,005.59$    (500.00)$     

51 MINOR OFFICE Walmart 651910 Visa 200.00$    -$   72.02$    127.98$     

52 MINOR OFFICE 651930 1,000.00$    1,000.00$    

53 MINOR DATA PROCESSING 651950 2,000.00$    2,000.00$    

54 FOOD OPERATING Food items for Meetings 652210 Visa 1,500.00$    -$   829.68$    670.32$     

55 FUEL AND LUBE 652490 DIRECT 500.00$    177.19$    322.81$     

56 COMPUTER SOFTWARE CDW-PDF Subscriptions 652920 Visa 1,000.00$    933.90$    66.10$     

57 OTHER OPERATING 652990 300.00$    -$   587.65$    (287.65)$     

58 PAINTING SUPPLIES 652999 200.00$    409.58$    (209.58)$     

59 BOOKS PUB SUBSCRIPTIONS NDN online subscription 654110 500.00$    -$    500.00$     

60 FRA and DEO dues 654210 -$    -$     

61 FHERO 654210 3,500.00$    2,415.40$    1,084.60$    

62 DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS 654210 3,500.00$    -$   2,415.40$   1,084.60$    

63 OTHER TRAINING ED 654360 800.00$    1,795.28$   (995.28)$     

64 ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT Chamber Breakfast Mtgs. 654370 VISA -$   120.00$    (120.00)$     

61

62 OPERATING EXPENSE 261,650.00$    105,324.02$     94,378.27$    61,947.71$    

67 DATA PROCESSING 764900 2,000.00$    -$    2,000.00$    

68 OTHER MACHINE 764990 1,500.00$    -$   -$   1,500.00$   

69 CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,500.00$    -$   -$   3,500.00$   

70 PAY IN LIEU OF 883100 20,000.00$    -$   -$   20,000.00$   



Immokalee Redevelopment Fund 186

February 07, 2020

71 RESIDENTIAL REHAB 884200 55,000.00$             -$                        -$                        55,000.00$             

70 GRANTS AND DEBT SERVICE 75,000.00$             -$                        -$                        75,000.00$             

72 TRANSFER TO 001 910010 DIRECT 46,400.00$             -$                        46,400.00$             

74 TRANSFER TO 187 CRA Director 911870 DIRECT 75,200.00$             -$                        75,200.00$             -$                        

75 TRANSER TO 716 Transfer to 716 Match funds 917160 DIRECT 160,000.00$           -$                        46,558.75$             113,441.25$           

75 ADV/REPAY TO 001 Budget Transfer 186 to 001 920010 DIRECT -$                        -$                        46,400.00$             (46,400.00)$            

76 ADV/REPAY TO 111 UNINCORPORATEDRepayment for IBDC 921110 DIRECT 30,000.00$             -$                        30,000.00$             -$                        

77 TRANSFERS 311,600.00$           -$                        198,158.75$           113,441.25$           

78 RESERVES FOR CONTINGENCIES 991000 58,000.00$             -$                        -$                        58,000.00$             

79 RESERVES FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY 993000 774,800.00$           -$                        -$                        774,800.00$           

80 RESERVES 832,800.00$           -$                        -$                        832,800.00$           

81 TOTAL BUDGET 1,741,850.00$        120,120.02$            354,749.30$           1,266,980.68$        

82

83 Total Available Balance 1,266,980.68$        

84  Plus Commited And Not Spent 120,120.02$           

85 Estimated Cash 1,387,100.70$        



1 

Upcoming Community Events 
Updated 02/12/2020 

Immokalee Water & Sewer District Board Meeting 
Date: 02/19/2020 at 4:30 p.m. 

Location: 1020 Sanitation Road 

Immokalee, FL. 34142 

Immokalee Fire Department Regular Board Meeting 

Date: 02/20/2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

Location: IFCD Headquarters (Fire Station 30) 

502 New Market Road East 

Immokalee Fl. 34142 

Immokalee Municipal Service Taxing Unit Advisory Committee Meeting 
Date: 02/26/2020 at 8:30 a.m.  

Location: CareerSource Of Southwest Florida 

750 South 5th Street  

Immokalee, FL. 34142 

Immokalee Community Safety Team Meeting 
Date: 02/24/2020 at 10:00 a.m. 

Location: CareerSource of Southwest Florida 

750 South 5th Street 

Immokalee, FL 34142 

Immokalee Chamber of Commerce Breakfast Meeting 
Date: 03/04/2020 at 8:00 a.m. 

Location: Lozano’s Mexican Restaurant 

405 New Market Road 

Immokalee, FL. 3414 

Immokalee Emerging Leaders Meeting 
Date: 03/11/2020 at 10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m. 

Location: CareerSource of Southwest Florida 

750 South 5th Street 

Immokalee, FL 34142 

Enclosure 5 



2 
 

 

Immokalee Interagency Council Meeting 
Date: 03/11/2020 at 11:30 a.m. 

Location: CareerSource of Southwest Florida 

750 South 5th Street 

Immokalee, FL 34142 

 

 

If you have a community event you would like us to add to the list, please send to 

Christie.Betancourt@colliercountyfl.gov        

            

mailto:Christie.Betancourt@colliercountyfl.gov


Enclosure 6 





2019 Annual Report 

Enclosure 7



Collier County  Community Redevelopment Agency ‐ Immokalee

CareerSource Southwest Florida

750 South Fifth Street,  Suite C

Immokalee, FL 34142

www.ImmokaleeToday.com

239‐867‐0025



lm
m

ok
al

ee
 C

R
A

90
01

50
1 

7

on

O
pe

n
12

/2
61

20
19

C
hr

is
to

ph
er

H
ar

m
on

10
08

 N
ew

 M
ar

ke
t 

R
d

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 in
 1

00
8 

N
ew

 M
ar

ke
t 

R
oa

d 
ap

pe
ar

s 
to

 b
e 

re
pa

iri
ng

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
in

 h
is

 h
om

e 
ga

ra
ge

. 
th

er
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

a
co

nc
er

n 
of

hi
s 

di
sp

os
al

 o
fc

he
m

ic
al

s 
ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 th
es

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
.

1 
90

01
 5

01
9

P
M

C
lo

se
d

12
12

6t
20

19
M

ar
ia

R
od

rig
ue

z
ad

dr
es

s 
is

 1
04

 A
nh

in
ga

I 
9*

**
G

ra
ffi

ti 
on

 t
he

 w
al

l 
on

 m
ai

n 
st

re
et

C
E

P
M

2O
l9

00
l5

l5
7

P
M

C
lo

se
d

12
t3

0t
20

19
st

ev
en

lo
pe

z-
si

lv
er

o
36

01
 W

E
S

T
C

LO
X

 S
T

F
ol

io
: 

71
 1

60
00

5

so
m

e 
of

th
e 

un
its

 h
av

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
liv

in
g 

in
 t

he
m

. 
T

he
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 
ha

ve
 r

ot
te

n 
flo

or
s,

 r
oo

fle
ak

s,
 s

in
k 

pi
pe

s 
le

ak
 o

r
do

n'
t 

ha
ve

 p
ip

in
g 

an
d 

w
at

er
 i

s 
co

lle
ct

ed
 i

n 
bu

ck
et

s 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

n 
ha

ve
 t

o 
be

 t
hr

ow
n 

ou
ts

id
e,

 
th

e 
to

ile
ts

 d
o 

no
t

flu
sh

 p
ro

pe
rly

. 
T

he
 t

ra
sh

 c
on

ta
in

er
 i

s 
to

o 
sm

al
l 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

fp
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 li
ve

 in
 t

hi
s 

pa
rk

, 
it

ca
us

in
g 

tr
as

h 
to

 b
e 

al
l o

ve
r 

th
e 

pl
ac

e.
 T

he
 a

pp
lia

nc
es

 d
o 

no
t 

w
or

k 
pr

op
er

ly
, 

ift
he

 f
rid

ge
 b

re
ak

s
th

e 
ow

ne
r 

w
ill

 n
ot

 r
ep

la
ce

 
it 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ha

ve
 t

o 
ke

ep
 t

he
ir 

fo
od

 o
n 

ic
e.

 E
le

cf
ic

al
 o

ut
le

ts
 a

re
 n

o1

w
in

do
w

s 
ar

e 
br

ok
en

 a
nd

 s
om

e 
ha

ve
 c

ar
db

oa
rd

/ta
pe

/fo
il 

ov
er

 t
he

m
. 

T
he

 p
la

ce
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

de
m

ne
d

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 t

o
th

is
sa

le
 a

nd
fo

r

C
E

N
A

20
l9

00
l5

l8
4

N
A

O
pe

n
12

/3
U

20
19

st
ev

en
lo

pe
z-

si
lv

er
o

N
O

 S
rr

e 
ao

or
es

s 
/ 

to
t 

(e
as

em
en

t)
 

on
 o

t 
M

an
on

La
ne

Im
m

ok
al

ee
 D

is
tr

ic
t

w
ee

ds
 /

an
d 

lit
te

r 
on

re
si

de
nt

ia
l

C
E

N
A

20
t9

00
t5

l9
l

N
A

O
pe

n
12

t3
1/

20
19

st
ev

en
lo

pe
z-

si
lv

er
o

on

cE
V

20
20

00
00

00
2

C
lo

se
d

0U
02

t2
02

0
st

ev
en

lo
pe

z-
si

lv
er

o
27

ll 
E

de
nA

ve
nu

e
Im

m
ok

al
ee

 D
is

tr
ic

t
ve

hi
cl

e 
on

re
si

de
nt

ia
l

c8
V

20
20

00
00

00
3

C
lo

se
d

01
10

21
20

20
st

ev
en

lo
pe

z-
si

lv
er

o
32

07
 C

ar
so

n 
R

oa
d

lm
m

ok
al

ee
 
D

is
tr

ic
t

ve
hi

cl
e 

on
re

si
de

nt
ia

l

c8
LU

20
20

00
00

04
9

LU
O

pe
n

oU
03

/2
02

0
st

ev
en

lo
pe

z-
si

lv
er

o
49

03
 M

lra
ha

m
 

D
riv

e
Im

m
ok

al
ee

 D
is

tr
ic

t
un

lic
en

se
d 

an
d

ve
hi

cl
es

/ 
st

or
ed

 o
n

zo
ne

d

cE
N

A
20

20
00

00
05

2
N

A
O

pe
n

01
/0

3t
20

20
st

ev
en

lo
pe

z-
si

lv
er

o
l0

9l
 J

ac
ks

on
 

C
ou

rt
Im

m
ok

al
ee

 D
is

tr
ic

t
w

ee
ds

 /
on

re
si

de
nt

ia
l

c8
N

A
20

20
00

00
05

3
N

A
O

pe
n

01
/0

3/
20

20
st

ev
en

lo
pe

z-
si

lv
er

o
10

95
 J

ac
ks

on
 

C
ou

rt
lm

m
ok

al
ee

 
D

is
tr

ic
t

w
ee

ds
 /

on
re

si
de

nt
ia

l
N

A
C

lo
se

d
0t

/0
6t

20
20

M
ar

ia
R

od
ris

ue
z

lit
te

r 
w

as
he

r 
in

 th
e 

fr
on

t 
ya

rd
N

A
C

lo
se

d
0l

/0
6t

20
20

M
ar

ia
R

od
rig

ue
z

Ir
tte

r 
re

til
ge

ra
to

r 
in

 s
id

e 
ya

rd
rp

en
0v

06
/2

02
0

M
ar

ia
R

od
ris

ue
z

un
lic

en
se

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 g

ra
y 

ca
r,

 w
hi

te
 c

ar
, 

gr
ee

n 
tr

uc
k

C
lo

se
d

0t
/0

6/
20

20
M

ar
ia

R
od

rig
ue

z
U

nh
ce

ns
ed

 
G

re
en

 t
ru

ck
N

A
llo

se
d

0t
 1

07
 /2

02
0

M
ar

ia
R

od
rig

ue
z

lit
te

r 
pl

as
tic

, 
co

nt
ru

ct
io

n 
de

br
i

uL
,v

2u
2u

00
00

1 
63

pe
n

0t
/0

71
20

20
M

ar
ia

B
od

rig
ue

z
M

ar
ia

R
od

rig
ue

z
U

nl
ic

gn
se

d 
gr

ee
n 

ca
r

N
A

pe
n

01
t0

7/
20

20
M

ar
ia

R
od

rig
ue

z
w

ee
ds

 e
xc

ee
di

ng
 1

8 
in

ch
es

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

-s
ed

-
01

07
/2

02
0

M
ar

ra
R

od
rig

ue
z

M
ar

ia
R

od
rig

ue
z

cE
P

E
20

20
00

00
2s

7
P

E
pe

n
0t

/0
81

20
20

M
an

aK
oo

ng
ue

z
C

hr
is

to
ph

er
H

ar
m

on
R

O
W

 n
ea

r 
32

0 
R

os
e 

A
ve

.
Lb

. 
vz

u2
ou

u0
02

58
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
0u

08
/2

02
0

--
O

tn
dm

fr
-

C
hr

is
to

ph
er

H
ar

m
on

C
hr

is
to

ph
er

H
ar

m
on

F
ah

m
ey

 S
t. 

so
ut

h 
of

 E
. 

D
el

aw
ar

e
N

W
 i

nt
er

se
ct

io
n 

of
 E

us
tis

 A
ve

 a
nd

 S
ch

oo
l

un
lic

en
se

d 
ve

hi
cl

e 
in

 R
O

W

cE
S

p2
02

00
00

02
85

S
D

O
pe

n
0U

08
t2

02
0

st
ev

en
lo

pe
z-

si
lv

er
o

59
3 

N
. 

9t
h 

S
tr

ee
t

w
as

a
A

S
A

S

on
 it

. 
A

ls
o 

th
e 

fe
nc

e 
w

as
 a

dd
ed

af
te

r 
H

ur
ric

an
e

in
 r

ea
r 

of
 t

he
no

cE
A

U
20

20
00

00
28

6
A

U
C

lo
se

d
01

/0
81

20
20

M
ar

ia
R

od
rig

ue
z

)y
JN

9l
H

51
F

O
LI

O
 #

 7
31

 8
O

2O
O

O
O

3 
P

E
R

 C
C

P
A

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
st

at
ed

 t
ha

t 
fe

nc
e 

w
as

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 w
ith

ou
t 

a 
pe

rm
it.

 R
el

at
ed

 C
as

e 
C

E
S

D
20

20
00

00
28

5
t8

v2
|J

20
00

00
28

8
pe

n
01

10
81

20
20

C
hr

is
to

ph
er

H
ar

m
on

I 
I 
08

 J
ef

fe
rs

on
 A

ve
.

un
hc

en
se

d 
ve

hi
cl

e
0t

 1
08

/2
02

0
C

hr
is

to
ph

er
H

ar
m

on
C

hr
is

to
ph

er
H

ar
m

on
80

5
.v

e.

Je
ffe

rs
on

 A
ve

. 
W

es
t 

at
 C

ha
rlo

tte
 S

t.
R

V
on

 v
ac

an
t

cB
Y

20
20

00
00

29
7

O
pe

n
o1

/0
91

20
20

st
ev

en
lo

pe
z-

si
lv

er
o

10
03

 J
um

pe
r 

La
ne

U
nl

ic
en

se
d 

/
ve

hi
cl

e 
on

C
E

N
A

20
20

00
00

29
9

N
A

O
pe

n
0t

/0
9/

20
20

C
hr

is
to

ph
er

H
ar

m
on

le
an

ln
g 

ag
ai

ns
t 

fe
nc

e 
in

 R
O

W
 a

cr
os

s 
fr

om
I2

07
 M

ad
is

on
 A

ve
.

ab
an

do
ne

d 
tir

es

cE
P

M
20

20
00

00
30

0
P

M
O

pe
n

ot
/0

9/
20

20
st

ev
en

lo
pe

z-
si

lv
er

o
I 
00

3 
Ju

m
pe

r 
La

ne

w
ith

on
re

si
de

nt
ia

l
P

E
)lo

se
d

oU
09

t2
02

0
C

hr
is

to
ph

er
H

an
no

n
R

O
W

 in
 fr

on
t 

of
 6

l l
 M

ad
is

on
 A

ve
. 

W
es

t
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

pa
rk

ed
 in

 s
w

al
e

P
E

C
lo

se
d

0t
/0

9/
20

20
C

hr
is

to
ph

er
H

an
ro

n
R

O
W

 a
cr

os
s 

fr
om

 3
16

 M
ad

is
on

 A
ve

. 
W

es
t

pi
ck

-u
p 

tr
uc

k 
pa

rk
ed

 i
n 

sw
al

e
P

E
pe

n
0t

/0
9t

20
20

C
hr

is
to

ph
er

H
ar

m
on

R
O

W
 a

cr
os

s 
fr

om
 2

12
 M

ad
is

on
 A

ve
se

m
i-t

ra
ile

r 
w

ith
 n

o 
lic

en
se

 p
la

te
 p

ar
kg

4 
in

 R
O

W

lo
r"

r-
o*

,

llo
se

d

I 
U

nl
ic

en
se

d 
bl

ac
k 

ca
r

N
A

0v
o7

/2
t)

20
lli

tte
r 

be
d 

fr
am

e.
 o

hr
vo

od
.

ta
nk

s
I 
un

lic
en

se
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 b
lo

ck
in

g
si

de
w

al
k

N
A

D
en

IR
V

 w
ith

 n
o 

ta
g 

di
sp

la
ye

d
,IJ

fc
n

ot
/tJ

8/
20

20

-b
rL

tlu
zu

uu
o0

J0
l 

I

Enclosure 8



lm
m

ok
al

ee
 C

R
A

cE
N

A
20

20
00

00
34

7
N

A
O

pe
n

01
n0

12
02

0
C

hr
is

to
ph

er
H

ar
m

on
l0

l0
 M

on
ro

e 
S

t 
(c

he
ck

 f
or

 r
ep

ea
t 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
 
of

th
e 

sa
m

e 
na

tu
re

)

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
pa

ve
rs

 e
tc

, 
pi

pe
s 

st
or

ed
 o

n 
pr

op
er

ty
, 

ol
d 

cu
t 

pi
le

s 
of

ve
ge

ta
tio

n/
tr

ee
s

an
d 

pi
le

s 
of

di
rt

. 
C

al
le

r 
st

at
es

 r
at

s 
an

d 
sn

ak
es

 n
ow

 v
is

ib
le

 o
n 

pr
op

er
ty

 a
nd

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
th

ey
 a

re
 c

om
in

g 
fr

om
ne

ig
hb

or
in

g 
pr

op
er

ty
 a

s 
th

ey
'v

e 
no

t 
ha

d 
a 

ra
t 

or
 s

na
ke

 p
ro

bl
em

 i
n 

th
e 

pa
st

. 
C

al
le

r 
st

at
es

 v
io

la
tio

n 
ca

n 
be

 s
ee

n

fr
om

 th
e 

st
re

et
. 

C
al

le
r 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
is

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
be

in
g 

us
ed

 a
s 

st
or

ag
e 

fo
r 

de
re

lic
t 

pr
op

er
ty

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
su

pp
lie

s
fo

r 
a 

bu
si

ne
ss

 l
oc

at
ed

 e
ls

ew
he

re
 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

 a
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

no
t 

he
re

. 
C

A
59

cE
P

E
20

20
00

00
3s

6
P

E
C

lo
se

d
01

/1
0t

20
20

C
hr

is
to

ph
er

H
ar

m
on

E
sc

am
bi

a 
S

tr
ee

t 
so

ut
h 

of
 A

da
m

s 
A

ve
.

w
hi

te
 p

ic
k-

up
 t

ru
ck

 p
ar

ke
d 

on
 R

O
W

si
de

w
al

k

cF
.N

A
20

20
00

00
35

8
N

A
O

pe
n

01
/1

01
20

20
C

hr
is

to
oh

er
H

ar
m

on
20

8 
M

ad
rs

on
 A

ve
. 

W
gr

as
s/

w
ee

ds
 

va
ca

nt
 lo

t

cF
.N

A
20

20
00

00
35

9
N

A
O

pe
n

0t
/1

0/
20

20
C

hr
is

to
ph

er
H

ar
m

on
ne

ar
 i

nt
er

se
ct

lo
n 

of
 E

. 
D

el
aw

ar
e 

A
ve

. 
at

F
ah

rn
ev

 S
t.

lit
te

r/
ill

ee
al

 d
um

pi
ng

C
E

N
A

20
20

00
00

40
1

N
A

O
pe

n
0v

13
/2

02
0

st
ev

en
lo

oe
z-

si
lv

er
o

1 
00

3 
Ju

m
pe

r 
La

ne
Li

tte
r 

on
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
pr

oD
er

ty
.

cE
V

20
20

00
00

40
5

O
pe

n
01

/1
3t

20
20

st
ev

en
lo

oe
z-

si
lv

er
o

20
9 

W
. 

M
ai

n 
S

tr
ee

t

U
nl

ic
en

se
d 

/ 
in

op
er

ab
le

 v
eh

ic
le

 i
n 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t 

on
 im

pr
ov

ed
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.

cE
N

A
20

20
00

00
40

9
N

A
O

pe
n

01
/1

31
20

20
st

ev
en

lo
pe

z-
si

lv
er

o
20

9 
W

. 
M

ai
n 

S
tr

ee
t

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n 
of

 li
tte

r 
on

 im
pr

ov
ed

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

pr
op

er
ty

c8
N

A
20

20
00

00
44

4
N

A
O

pe
n

0'
t/1

41
20

20
M

ar
ia

R
od

riq
ue

z
Li

tte
r 

en
d 

ta
bl

es
, 

ch
ai

rs
, 

ca
bi

ne
t, 

do
or

, 
gl

as
s

18
N

A
20

20
00

00
47

3
O

pe
n

01
t\4

/2
02

0
M

ar
ia

R
od

rig
ue

z
Li

tte
r 

oi
l 

co
nt

ai
ne

rs
, 

bu
ck

et
s,

 d
re

ss
er

, 
pl

yw
oo

d,
 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

m
al

er
ia

l

cE
P

M
20

20
00

00
47

5
P

M
O

pe
n

0U
14

12
02

0
st

ev
en

lo
oe

z-
si

lv
er

o
12

30
 L

in
co

ln
 B

ou
le

va
rd

gr
af

fit
i 

on
 e

nt
ra

nc
e 

si
gn

 n
ea

r 
cr

es
tv

ie
w

 i
n 

Im
m

ok
al

ee

cE
V

20
20

00
00

47
8

C
lo

se
d

0U
14

12
02

0
M

ar
ia

R
od

rig
ue

z
un

lic
en

se
d 

w
hi

te
 t

ru
ck

cE
V

20
20

00
00

48
0

O
pe

n
0t

/1
4/

20
20

M
an

aR
od

rig
ue

z
un

lic
en

se
d 

ca
r

c8
V

20
20

00
00

57
3

C
lo

se
d

0v
ts

12
02

0
lh

ris
to

ph
er

H
ar

rn
on

80
8 

E
. 

M
ar

n 
S

tr
ee

t
ve

hi
cl

e 
w

ith
 e

xp
ire

d 
st

ic
ke

r 
po

st
ed

 "
F

or
 S

al
e"

 o
n 

im
pr

ov
ed

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

y

cE
V

20
20

00
00

57
8

O
pe

n
0v

15
t2

02
0

M
ar

ia
R

od
rig

ue
z

4I
7 

JO
N

E
S

 S
T

un
lic

en
se

d 
re

d 
ca

r

cE
V

20
20

00
00

58
 

1
O

pe
n

0U
ts

t2
02

0
M

ar
ia

R
od

ng
ue

z
un

lic
en

se
d 

sr
ee

 v
an

- 
si

lv
er

 v
an

 r
ed

 s
uv

LU m
-

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

0v
t6

/7
02

0
ne

w
 m

ar
ke

t
63

 8
6 

l 8
80

00
8

ca
rs

a

Lb
LU

Z
U

Z
U

U
U

U
U

O
V

J
ffi

7f
,f'

.r
i(r

i7
l-

O
pe

n
01

1t
61

20
20

M
ar

ia
R

od
ris

ue
z

U
nl

ic
en

se
d 

R
ed

 t
ru

ck

cE
V

20
20

00
00

62
s

O
pe

n
01

11
61

20
20

M
ar

ia
R

od
rig

ue
z

un
lic

en
se

d 
sr

ee
n 

tr
uc

k

cE
N

A
20

20
00

00
66

0
O

pe
n

0t
/1

7/
20

20
M

ar
ia

R
od

rig
ue

z
Li

fte
r 

so
fa

, 
ta

bl
e.

 t
oi

le
t, 

ch
ai

rs
, 

w
oo

d 
pa

lle
ts

, 
P

la
st

ic
, 

pa
pe

r

cE
N

A
20

20
00

00
66

2
N

A
O

pe
n

0t
n7

t2
02

0
M

ar
ia

R
od

rig
ue

z
Li

tte
r 

dr
vw

al
l. 

to
ile

t. 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
de

br
i. 

ch
ai

rs
 c

am
et

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

01
/r

7/
20

20
--

nl
m

im
-

on
 v

ac
an

t

c8
N

A
20

20
00

00
72

3
N

A
O

pe
n

0U
21

12
02

0
C

hr
is

to
ph

er
H

ar
m

on
49

U
 5

 ls
t 

S
tr

ee
t

74
42

00
00

02
7

tir
e 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
on

 v
ac

an
t 

D
ar

ce
l

ot
/t6

t2
o2

r)

,]A



750 South Fifth Street (Careersource Building) 

Immokalee, FL 34142

239-867-0028

www.immokaleetoday.com 

February 13, 2020 

Commissioner William McDaniel 

Collier County Board of County Commissioner 

3299 East Tamiami Trail, Suite 303 

Naples, FL 34112 

RE: State Road 29 Widening - Panther Crossing Bridge Replacement - Immokalee 

      Dear Commissioner McDaniel: 

The Immokalee Local Redevelopment Advisory Board requests Collier County Board 

of Commissioners coordinate with Florida Department of Transportation to assure that 

the current bridge that connects Farm Workers Village to Village Oaks Elementary 

School is replaced with a new bridge when SR29 is widened from two to four lanes.  

Maintaining an elevated pedestrian crosswalk over SR29 is necessary to assure 

pedestrians safety between the two community destinations.  

As you know, in Immokalee pedestrian infrastructure is especially important because 

nearly 33% of the population either use public transit, bike, or walk to work.  Many of 

the students walk to school and 20% of Immokalee do not have access to a car.   

The existing bridge has served the community for the past 27 years.  It provides safe 

passage to the estimated 200 students that live in Farm Workers Village today. The 

proposed expanded roadway will make crossing SR29 more difficult and dangerous 

without a replacement bridge. 

It is our understanding that Collier County owns and maintains the existing bridge and 

it may be up to the County to replace the bridge. We would request that the County 

program funding and coordinate with FDOT to assure that the bridge is replaced as part 

of the road widening project.  The CRA would like to be included in the discussion of 

the bridge replacement to provide input on the design options. 

Respectfully, 

Frank Nappo, Chairman 

Cc: Victoria Peters, Planning Specialist III FDOT 

       Kaylene Johnson, Project Manager, FDOT 

       Anne McLaughlin, Executive Director, MPO 

  Leo Ochs, County Manager 

James Sainvilus

P 

CRA Board 

Commissioner 

Donna Fiala 
Co-Chair 

Commissioner 
William McDaniel, 

Jr. 

Co-Chair 

Commissioner 

Burt L. Saunders 

Commissioner 
Penny Taylor 

Commissioner 
Andy Solis, Esq  

CRA Advisory 

Board 

Frank Nappo 
Chairman 

Anne Goodnight 
Vice-Chair 

Mike Facundo 
Andrea Halman 

Mark Lemke 

Frank Leon 
Edward “Ski” Olesky 

Yvar Pierre 

MSTU Advisory 

Committee 

Bernardo Barnhart 
Chair 

Peter Johnson 
Vice- Chair 

Norma Garcia 
Andrea Halman 

Cherryle Thomas 

CRA Staff 

Debrah Forester 

Director 

Christie Betancourt 

Operations Manager 

Monica Acosta 

Administrative 
Assistant 

Enclosure 9

http://www.immokaleetoday.com/

	CRA Cover February 19, 2020
	CRA Cover - February 19, 2020
	2020 Calendar Cover - CRAMSTU Meetings Final 02.10.2020

	February 19 2020 CRA Agenda
	Enclosure 1 January 15, 2020 CRA Minutes Final
	Enclosure 2 CRA Manager Report Final 02.12.2020
	Enclosure 3 Project Manager Report 2.12.20 Final
	Enclosure 4 Current Budget 2020
	Budget - Fund 111 as of 02.07.2020
	Budget - Fund 162 as of 02.07.2020
	Budget - Fund 186 CRA as of 02.07.2020

	Enclosure 5 Community Event Listing  February 12 2020
	Enclosure 6 Collier County
	Enclosure 7 2019 Annual Report
	Immokalee CRA 2019 ANNUAL REPORT DRAFT 1.28
	Immokalee CRA 2019 ANNUAL REPORT DRAFT 1.28s

	Enclosure 8 Immokalee CRA Report for February 2020 Meeting
	Enclosure 9 Panther Crossing Bridge Replacement Letter
	Blank Page

